



Omni Console User's Guide

ersion 3.14

Active Technologies, EDA, EDA/SQL, FIDEL, FOCUS, Information Builders, the Information Builders logo, iWay, iWay Software, Parlay, PC/FOCUS, RStat, Table Talk, Web390, WebFOCUS, WebFOCUS Active Technologies, and WebFOCUS Magnify are registered trademarks, and DataMigrator and Hyperstage are trademarks of Information Builders, Inc.

Adobe, the Adobe logo, Acrobat, Adobe Reader, Flash, Adobe Flash Builder, Flex, and PostScript are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Adobe Systems Incorporated in the United States and/or other countries.

Due to the nature of this material, this document refers to numerous hardware and software products by their trademarks. In most, if not all cases, these designations are claimed as trademarks or registered trademarks by their respective companies. It is not this publisher's intent to use any of these names generically. The reader is therefore cautioned to investigate all claimed trademark rights before using any of these names other than to refer to the product described.

Copyright © 2020, by Information Builders, Inc. and iWay Software. All rights reserved. Patent Pending. This manual, or parts thereof, may not be reproduced in any form without the written permission of Information Builders, Inc.

Contents

Preface	5
Documentation Conventions	
Related Publications	5
Customer Support	5
Help Us to Serve You Better	6
User Feedback	
iWay Software Training and Professional Services	8
1. Introducing the Omni Console	9
Omni Console Components Configuration Overview	9
Prerequisites and Installation	
2. Navigating and Using the Omni Console	
Signing in to the Omni Console	
Starting and Stopping Services	
Viewing and Editing Configuration Parameters	
Runtime Configuration Settings	16
Runtime Tab	
Command Line Tab	
Email Notification Tab	
Database Configuration Settings	
Managed Services Configuration Settings	
Product License	
User Management	21
Managing Deployment Bundles	23
Viewing Information for the Installed Bundle	
Viewing Subjects	
Example Viewer	29
IDS Viewer	
XSD Viewer	
Downloading Documentation	
Process Test Subjects	
Managing Workflow Items During Subject Processing	

Monitoring Data Processing	33
Viewing Logs	35
Testing Your Deployment Bundle	37
Consoles	38
Operations	39

Preface

This documentation provides usage information for the Omni Console. It is intended for developers and administrators of Omni-Gen[™] Integration Edition.

Documentation Conventions

The following table lists and describes the documentation conventions that are used in this manual.

Convention	Description
THIS TYPEFACE	Denotes syntax that you must type exactly as shown.
or	
this typeface	
this typeface	Represents a placeholder (or variable), a cross-reference, or an important term. It may also indicate a button, menu item, or dialog box option that you can click or select.
underscore	Indicates a default setting.
Key + Key	Indicates keys that you must press simultaneously.
8	Indicates two or three choices. Type one of them, not the braces.
	Separates mutually exclusive choices in syntax. Type one of them, not the symbol.
	Indicates that you can enter a parameter multiple times. Type only the parameter, not the ellipsis ().
	Indicates that there are (or could be) intervening or additional commands.

Related Publications

Visit our Technical Documentation Library at *http://documentation.informationbuilders.com*. You can also contact the Publications Order Department at (800) 969-4636.

Customer Support

Do you have questions about this product?

Join the Focal Point community. Focal Point is our online developer center and more than a message board. It is an interactive network of more than 3,000 developers from almost every profession and industry, collaborating on solutions and sharing every tips and techniques. Access Focal Point at http://forums.informationbuilders.com/eve/forums.

You can also access support services electronically, 24 hours a day, with InfoResponse Online. InfoResponse Online is accessible through our website, *http:// www.informationbuilders.com*. It connects you to the tracking system and known-problem database at the Information Builders support center. Registered users can open, update, and view the status of cases in the tracking system and read descriptions of reported software issues. New users can register immediately for this service. The technical support section of *www.informationbuilders.com* also provides usage techniques, diagnostic tips, and answers to frequently asked questions.

Call Information Builders Customer Support Services (CSS) at (800) 736-6130 or (212) 736-6130. Customer Support Consultants are available Monday through Friday between 8:00 A.M. and 8:00 P.M. EST to address all your questions. Information Builders consultants can also give you general guidance regarding product capabilities. Be prepared to provide your six-digit site code (*xxxx.xx*) when you call.

To learn about the full range of available support services, ask your Information Builders representative about InfoResponse Online, or call (800) 969-INFO.

Help Us to Serve You Better

To help our consultants answer your questions effectively, be prepared to provide specifications and sample files and to answer questions about errors and problems.

The following table lists the environment information that our consultants require.

Platform	
Operating System	
OS Version	
JVM Vendor	
JVM Version	

The following table lists additional questions to help us serve you better.

Preface

Request/Question	Error/Problem Details or Information
Did the problem arise through a service or event?	
Provide usage scenarios or summarize the application that produces the problem.	
When did the problem start?	
Can you reproduce this problem consistently?	
Describe the problem.	
Describe the steps to reproduce the problem.	
Specify the error messages.	
Any change in the application environment: software configuration, EIS/database configuration, application, and so forth?	
Under what circumstance does the problem <i>not</i> occur?	

The following is a list of error and problem files that might be applicable.

- □ Input documents (XML instance, XML schema, non-XML documents)
- **Transformation files**
- Error screen shots
- □ Error output files
- □ Trace files
- **u** Custom functions and agents in use

- Diagnostic Zip
- Transaction log

User Feedback

In an effort to produce effective documentation, the Technical Content Management staff welcomes your opinions regarding this document. Please use the Reader Comments form at the end of this document to communicate your feedback to us or to suggest changes that will support improvements to our documentation. You can also contact us through our website, *http://documentation.informationbuilders.com/connections.asp*.

Thank you, in advance, for your comments.

iWay Software Training and Professional Services

Interested in training? Our Education Department offers a wide variety of training courses for iWay Software and other Information Builders products.

For information on course descriptions, locations, and dates, or to register for classes, visit our website, *http://education.informationbuilders.com*, or call (800) 969-INFO to speak to an Education Representative.

Interested in technical assistance for your implementation? Our Professional Services department provides expert design, systems architecture, implementation, and project management services for all your business integration projects. For information, visit our website, *http://www.informationbuilders.com/consulting*.

Chapter

Introducing the Omni Console

This section provides an introduction to the Omni Console and describes key features and functionality.

In this chapter:

- Omni Console Components Configuration Overview
- Prerequisites and Installation

Omni Console Components Configuration Overview

Available in Omni-Gen[™] Integration Edition, the Omni Console exposes an array of monitoring and management functions, which simplifies deployment and overall operations, for example:

Enabling web-based configuration for various services.

Providing a centralized location for starting and stopping services.

□ Enabling generation of sample data for testing purposes.

Providing detailed monitoring of all data processes with an array of available metrics.

Omni Console enables rapid issue isolation and resolution, which is a key to a robust data process.

Prerequisites and Installation

The Omni Console is packaged with Omni-Gen Integration Edition. For more information on prerequisites and installation, see the Omni-Gen[™] Integration Edition Installer User's Guide.

By default, the Omni Console listens on port 9500. Ensure that this port is available in your environment and is not being used by any other component.



Navigating and Using the Omni Console

This section describes how to navigate and use the features and functionality that are available in the Omni Console.

In this chapter:

Signing in to the Omni Console		User Management
Starting and Stopping Services		Managing Deployment Bundles
Viewing and Editing Configuration		Monitoring Data Processing
Parameters		Viewing Logs
Runtime Configuration Settings		Testing Your Deployment Bundle
Database Configuration Settings		Consoles
Managed Services Configuration Settings		Operations
Product License	_	

Signing in to the Omni Console

To sign in to the Omni Console, type the following URL in a browser:

https://yourhost.yourdomain.com:9500

For example:

https://tcmappsa.ibi.com:9500

Note: You cannot use localhost in the URL.

mniConsole				
	Log into Omni-Gen Console			
Userna	me			
ibi				
Passwo	vrd			
	Sign in			
_				

The Log into Omni-Gen Console page opens, as shown in the following image.

Specify a user name and password, and then click Sign in. The default credentials are:

Username: ibi

Password: ibi

Starting and Stopping Services

The Services section enables you to control the associated processes and manage their statuses. This eliminates the need to start and stop services from the command line and provides a unified view for operations.

≡ ØmniConsole	Services					
	Start All Stop All Stop All					
 Services Configuration Deployment 	Data Processing Omni Server					
Processing	Omni Services					
🖵 System 👻	Designer Repository OFF ON					
Testing 1	Deployment Bundler OFF ON					
>_ Consoles						
Operations						

In the left pane of the Omni Console, click Services, as shown in the following image.

The following table lists and describes the available buttons on the Managed Services toolbar.

Toolbar Button	Description
Start All	Starts all services that are not currently running.
Stop All	Stops all services that are currently running.
Restart All	Stops all services that are currently running, then starts all services.

Viewing and Editing Configuration Parameters

The *Configuration* section enables you to view and edit the configuration parameters for various Omni-Gen components, which includes server configuration, database properties, Java properties, logging properties, and an array of other configurations that can be easily manipulated from the Omni Console. This enables a clear view into the environment and its management, as well as exposing tuning capabilities for data processing.

≡ <a>>mniConsole	Services				
	Start All Stop All Stop All				
Services					
🌽 Configuration 👻	Data Processing				
Runtime	Omni Server	OFF ON			
Databases	Omni Services				
Managed Services	Designer Repository	OFF ON			
Product License	Deployment Bundler	OFF ON			
Deployment					
E Processing 🔻					
🖵 System 🔻					
Testing					
>_ Consoles					
Operations					

In the left pane of the Omni Console, click *Configuration*, as shown in the following image.

The configuration parameters are organized into the following groups, which you can select:

Runtime. Enables you to configure parameters for the Omni-Gen runtime environment.

- **Databases.** Enables you to configure parameters for your specific database.
- **Managed Services.** Enables you to configure parameters for the Omni-Gen services.
- **Product License.** Provides license information about your Omni-Gen installation.

Descriptions for each configuration parameter are listed in the Description column. Parameter descriptions for the Runtime group are shown in the following image.

	Configuration:	Runtime		0 9 🛓
Runtime	Command Line	Email Notification		
Se	tting		Value	Description
Or	nni-Gen Server Mod	le	DEVELOPMENT	Used to determine if the system is in production or not. 'DEVELOPMENT' is the default. 'PRODUCTION' is the alternative
Se	rver Host Name		TCMAPPSB	Host name for the machine executing the server.
Se	rver Domain		ibi.com	Domain for the machine executing the server.
Se	rver FQDN		TCMAPPSB.ibi.com	FQDN for the machine executing the server.
Se	rver Start Time		2020-01-10 15:50:42 UTC 📝	Specifies the time OmniServer last started.
U Se	rver Java Home		C:/Program Files/Java/jdk1.8.0_191	Server Java Home
Ja	va Process Id		1592@TCMAPPSB 🗹	Specifies the current Java process id for the controller.
Ru	intime Data Location	1	C:\omnigen/OmniServer//OmniGenData	Defines the directory where runtime data such as configuration is stored.
De De	fault Date/Time form	nat	yyyy-MM-dd HH:mm:ss.SSS	Defines the default format for Date/Time data. Follows the Java SimpleDateFormat rules.

If a parameter value has been modified, a green indicator icon is shown next to the parameter. Hover or click this indicator to view the original value and the modified by value, as shown in the following image.

≡ <a>>mniConsole	🗩 C	onfiguration:	Runtime			
🗱 Services	Runtime	Command Line	Email Notification			
🌽 Configuration 🥆	Setting			Value		
Runtime	🖋 Ser	Server Java Home			C:/Program Files/Java/jdk1.8.0_191 📝	
Databases	Jav	Java Process Id			6788@TCMAPPSB 📝	
Managed Services	Runtime Data Loca		I	C:\omnigen/Omni		Server//OmniGenData
Product License	Default Date/Time format				yyyy-MM-dd HH:mm:ss.SSS	
Deployment	Cor	Console Admin Username Console Admin Password			Modified by: UIX Original value: 15	
System -	Cor					
Testing	Omni-Gen Server Console Timeout			20 📝		
>_ Consoles	Ena	able/Disable File Pr	ocessing		true	
Operations	🖋 File	Polling Interval			2000	

Runtime Configuration Settings

This section provides an overview of the available tabs that are located under Configuration, Runtime in the left pane of the Omni Console.

≡ ØmniConsole	Configuration: Runtime				
😂 Services	Runtime	Command Line	Email Notification		
差 Configuration 👻	Set	Setting			
Runtime	Ø Om	Omni-Gen Server Mode			
Databases	Ser	ver Host Name			
Managed Services	Ser	ver Domain			
Product License	Ser	ver FQDN			

Runtime Tab

The Runtime tab, shown in the following image, provides quick access to runtime configuration settings.

Configuration: Runtime	Q Q 🛓	
Runtime Command Line Email Notification		
Setting	Value	Description
Omni-Gen Server Mode	DEVELOPMENT	Used to determine if the system is in production or not. 'DEVELOPMENT' is the default. 'PRODUCTION' is the alternative
Server Host Name	TCMAPPSB	Host name for the machine executing the server.
Server Domain	ibi.com	Domain for the machine executing the server.
Server FQDN	TCMAPPSB.ibi.com	FQDN for the machine executing the server.
Server Start Time	2020-01-10 15:50:42 UTC 📝	Specifies the time OmniServer last started.
ഗ Server Java Home	C:/Program Files/Java/jdk1.8.0_191 📝	Server Java Home
Java Process Id	1592@TCMAPPSB 🗹	Specifies the current Java process id for the controller.
Runtime Data Location	C:\omnigen/OmniServer//OmniGenData	Defines the directory where runtime data such as configuration is stored.
Default Date/Time format	yyyy-MM-dd HH:mm:ss.SSS	Defines the default format for Date/Time data. Follows the Java SimpleDateFormat rules.
Console Admin Username	ibi	Specifies the console admin username.
Console Admin Password	ľ	Specify the console admin password.
Ø Omni-Gen Server Console Timeout	15	How long the user can be inactive before they are signed out (in minutes).

Any setting that includes a pen icon to the left of the setting name can be modified. Most settings that are modified will require you to restart either the Omni-Gen Server and/or the Omni-Gen Controller. When a change to a setting is made, a prompt displays, which identifies the specific component that must be restarted.

Command Line Tab

The Command Line tab, shown in the following image, enables you to view and modify the properties for starting a command line process.

Run	ntime	Command Line	Email Notification		
	Set	ting		Value	Description
	JVN	I Process Max Me	mory	1024M	Defines the maximum memory use allowable for this service.
	JVI	Il Process Argumei	nts	-Dserver, directory=C:\omnigen/OmniServer -Dormigen config file=C:\omnigen/OmniServer/ //OmniGenData/OmniGenConfiguration properties -Dlog4j, configurationFile=File: configo4j-command.xml -Djavax.net.sl.trustStore=C:\omnigen/OmniServer/ //OmniGenData/ibi-certs -Djavax.net.sl.trustStorePassword=changeit -Duser.timezone=UTC	Defines the JVM arguments to use when starting this service.
<i></i>	JVN	/I Process Classpa	th	C:\omnigen/OmniServer/cmd/OmniCommandLineLib/*	Defines the classpath used when starting this service.
	Log	Directory		C:\omnigen/OmniServer//OmniGenData/logs/command	Defines the location where command log files will be written.

Email Notification Tab

The Email Notification tab, shown in the following image, is used if you have selected the option to generate email alerts during the Omni-Gen installation process.

Runtime	e Command Line Email Notification		
S	etting	Value	Description
S	ervice Name	omniAlert	Defines the name of this Omni-Gen service.
e E	nable/Disable Email Notifications on Failure	false	Used to enable or disable email notifications regarding work order failures.
e E	nable/Disable Email Notifications on Start	false	Used to enable or disable email notifications when work order processing starts.
ø E	nable/Disable Email Notifications on Completion	false	Used to enable or disable email notifications when work order processing completes.
М	1ail Server Type	smtp	The email server protocol.
M	1ail Server Hostname		The outbound email server hostname (ex. smtp.ibi.com).
M	fail Server Port		The outbound email server port.
A	uthentication Required?	true	Is authentication required for the email account?
ø E	nable a secure connection (TLS/SSL)?	true	Enable/disable a secure connection for the account.
M	lail Server Username		The outbound email server username.
M	fail Server Password	ľ	The outbound email server password.
D	efault From Address	admin@customer.com	The default outbound email from address.
D	efault To Address(es)	admin@customer.com	A single or SPACE separated list of email recipients.

You can modify these settings after Omni-Gen has been installed according to the application requirements, which can change over time.

Database Configuration Settings

The *Databases* section, shown in the following image, allows you to configure and tune the database that was specified during the Omni-Gen installation.

≡ ØmniConsole	Configuration: Databases			2	0	-
😂 Services	Default Model Ramp					
差 Configuration 👻	Setting	Value	Description			
Runtime	Database Driver Class	org.postgresql.Driver 📝	Specify the JDBC driver used to connect to the database.			
Databases	Connection Url	jdbc:postgresql://omnipostgres:5432/omnigen 📝	Specify the JDBC URL to use when making the database connection.			
Managed Services	Connection User Name	postgres 🗹	Specify the database user name associated with the connection.			
Product License	Connection Password	ľ	Specify the database user password associated with the connection.			
Deployment	Maximum Active Connections	50	Specify the maximum number of database connections allowed by this po	ol.		
Processing	Initial Active Connections	2	Specify the initial connection pool size.			
Testing 0	Additional Connection Properties	testWhileIdle=true	Specify comma delimited list of connection properties.			
>_ Consoles	Database Type		Database type.			
Operations	Database Schema		Specify the database schema to use for the connection.			
	Maximum Identifier Length	63 🗹	Specify the maximum length to use for the identifier.			

The database repository is used heavily by various Omni-Gen components across the entire data processing life cycle. As a result, it is important to note the current settings and coordinate with your database administrator to identify the optimal configuration and balance for connection pooling, and other related tuning options.

Database configuration parameters and settings are organized by the following tabs in the *Databases* section:

- Default
- Model
- Ramp

Managed Services Configuration Settings

The *Managed Services* section, shown in the following image, allows you to control the relevant Omni-Gen services from a single console perspective, instead of accessing each service directly.

≡ @mniConsole	Configuration: Services		2 9 🛓
😂 Services	Controller Server Repository Deployment		
🔑 Configuration 👻	Setting	Value	Description
C Runtime	Service Name	omniController	Defines the name of this Omni-Gen service.
Databases	HTTP/HTTPS Listener Port	9500 🗭	Defines the http:/https port the controller will listen for REST service calls.
Managed Services	JVM Process Max Memory	1024M 🖻	Defines the maximum memory use allowable for this service.
 Product License Deployment 	JVM Process Arguments	-Dserver.port=9500 -Dserver.directory=C:lomnigen/OrmiServer -Dormigen.config.file=C:lomnigen/OrmiServer/./OrmiGenData/OrmiGenConfiguration properties -Dologi configurationFile=file.config-qi-controller.xml-Duser.timezone=UTC -Dite.encoding=UTF-8 -XX:-UseGCOverheadLimit	Defines the JVM arguments to use when starting this service.
Processing	JVM Process Classpath	C:\omnigen/OmniServer/cmd/OmniControllerLib/*	Defines the classpath used when starting this service.
Testing 0	Log Directory	C:\omnigen/OmniServer/./OmniGenData/logs/controller	Defines the location where controller log files will be written.
>_ Consoles	Service Console URL	https://TCMAPPSB.ibi.com:9500/swagger-ui.html	Defines the REST console associated with this service.
Operations	Start-All at Start?	false	Enables starting all services after Controller has started up.
	Controller external startup arguments list filename	omniController-start.lst	Filename of externalized arguments for controller's command-line
	Task scheduler thread pool size	10	Task scheduler thread pool size.

You can configure various settings using the Omni Console and the settings will be applied to the managed service. Doing so will require you to restart the relevant managed service in addition to any of the related services that can be impacted.

Managed Services configuration parameters and settings are organized by the following tabs in the *Managed Services* section:

Controller

Server

- Repository
- Deployment

Product License

The *Product License* section, shown in the following image, provides license information about your installation.

≡ @mniConsole	Configuration: Product License			0	-	
😂 Services	Setting	Value	Description			
差 Configuration 👻	Product Edition	Integration Edition	The Omni-Gen product version			
Runtime	Product Mode	DEVELOPMENT	The Omni-Gen product running mode			
Database	License Status	✓ ACTIVE	The status of the product license			
Managed Services	1 License Key	nVQBI+8FyR+B3QteLpPMqQ==:9pT7pUGnvbJgsCdNaxP8iidU5IXWf63QVeRj73ubBpc6PHE/7Po+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBNRTVbBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWBPC6PHE/7PO+XgmfzWB0+2PO+Xg	The license key for this product			
Product License	Expiration Date	unlimited_license	The expiration date for this license			
	License Message		System messages pertaining to this license			
v Deployment						

User Management

The Omni Console supports one user admin. The default user name and password for this user admin is *ibi*.

To modify the user name and password:

1. In the left pane of the Omni Console, click Configuration and then Runtime.

The Console Admin Username and Console Admin Password parameters are available in the Runtime tab, as shown in the following image.

≡ @mniConsole	Configuration: Runtime		2 9 🛓
😂 Services	Runtime Command Line Email Notification		
🌽 Configuration 👻	Setting	Value	Description
Runtime	Ø Omni-Gen Server Mode	DEVELOPMENT	Used to determine if the system is in production or not. 'DEVELOPMENT' is the default. 'PRODUCTION' is the alternative
Databases	Server Host Name	TCMAPPSB	Host name for the machine executing the server.
Managed Services	Server Domain	ibi.com	Domain for the machine executing the server.
Product License	Server FQDN	TCMAPPSB.ibi.com	FQDN for the machine executing the server.
Deployment Processing -	Server Start Time	2020-01-10 15:50:42 UTC 📝	Specifies the time OmniServer last started.
System -	ර Server Java Home	C:/Program Files/Java/jdk1.8.0_191 📝	Server Java Home
F Testing ①	Java Process Id	1592@TCMAPPSB 🗹	Specifies the current Java process id for the controller.
>_ Consoles	Runtime Data Location	C:\omnigen/OmniServer//OmniGenData	Defines the directory where runtime data such as configuration is stored.
Operations	Default Date/Time format	yyyy-MM-dd HH:mm:ss.SSS	Defines the default format for Date/Time data. Follows the Java SimpleDateFormat rules.
	Console Admin Username	іЫ	Specifies the console admin username.
	Console Admin Password	ľ	Specify the console admin password.

2. To modify the default user name, click the *Edit* icon to the left of the Console Admin Username parameter.

The Console Admin Username dialog box opens, as shown in the following image.

Console /	Admin Username	×
Value:	ibi	
Expanded Value:	ibi	
Property:	server.runtime.console.login-name	
Description:	Specifies the console admin username.	
Original value:	ibi	
	A When updating the username or password, the console will reflect the newest value. However, you must restart the controller for these changes to take effect.	
✓ Update	× Cancel	

- 3. In the Value field, specify a new user name, and then click *Update*.
- 4. To modify the default password, click the *Edit* icon to the left of the Console Admin Password parameter.

Console	Admin Password	×
Value:		
Property:	server.runtime.console.login-password	
Description:	Specify the console admin password.	
Modified by:	UIX	
Modified date:	10 Jan 2020 15:43:48 GMT	
Original value:	22222	
	▲ When updating the username or password, the console will reflect the newest value. However, you must restart the controller for these changes to take effect.	

The Console Admin Password dialog box opens, as shown in the following image.



5. In the Value field, specify a new password, and then click Update.

Note: You must restart the Omni Controller for any changes made to the user name and/or password to take effect.

Managing Deployment Bundles

The *Deployment* section enables you to manage the installed deployment bundle, as well as retrieve information on the associated Subjects. You can replace the current deployment, as required, or simply update the deployment from a new bundle.

≡ @mniConsole	S Deployment		
	🛓 Deploy Bundle 👻 🙂 Reset Environment 👻 🕲	Deployment History 👻	
😂 Services	Installed Bundle Information		3
🌽 Configuration 🤜	Project Name	Customer	
Deployment	Created By	IBI Deployment Bundler	
E Processing -	Created Date	1/16/20 12:14 PM	
🖵 System 👻	Release Number	1.0.0.Alpha.3	
Testing	Version	Customer_1_0_0_Alpha_3_200116121447	
>_ Consoles	Installed Date	2020-01-16 17:15:29.288	
	Release Notes		
operations	Subjects		?
	Workflow	Name	
	≡ ∽ 🗹 20 / 20	Customer	
	≡ ∽ 🗹 20 / 20	Item	
	≡ ∽ 🗹 20 / 20	SalesOrder	
	≡ マ 🗹 20 / 20	SalesOrg	
	≡ マ 🗹 20 / 20	SourceCodeMap	
	≡ ∽ 🗹 20 / 20	SourceCodeMetadata	
	≡ マ 20/20	SourceCodeSet	
	≡ ▼ 20/20	SourceCodeStandard	

In the left pane of the Omni Console, click *Deployment*, as shown in the following image.

Toolbar Button	Description
Deploy Bundle	Enables you to select a number of different deployment actions related to managing the model plans.
	Install/Replace Bundle. Opens a dialog box, to browse your file system and select a bundle to deploy as a replacement.
	The option is labeled <i>Install Bundle</i> or <i>Replace Bundle</i> if an existing bundle is available.
	Note: If a database exists, then it will be cleaned and all data will be lost.
	Update Bundle. Opens a dialog box, to browse your file system and select a bundle to deploy as an update.
	It is expected to be a derivative of the current bundle. For example, a new column/attribute.
	Note: The database is not cleaned.
	Update Data Model. Opens a dialog box, to browse your file system and select a data model to deploy as an update.
Reset Environment	Resets the environment to its original state, when it was first deployed.
	Model Tables. Truncates all model-related tables, and leaves system tables intact.
	Model AND System Tables. Truncates all application tables, allowing you to start fresh in a Development or Test environment, as if you had just deployed your bundle for the first time.
	Note:
	This action opens a dialog box to confirm this operation.
	This is a destructive operation and should be used with caution.

The following table lists and describes the available buttons on the Deployment toolbar.

Toolbar Button	Description
Deployment History	Enables you to see your prior Deployment History at a glance, with the following available for each Deployment.
	Current Deployment. Enables you to download the currently Deployed Data Model and as a Deployment Bundle, for ease of propagation to other environments.
	Deployment Bundle. Enables you to download the Bundle that was used to affect a specific <i>Update Bundle</i> or <i>Update Data Model</i> operation.
	Measures. Enables you to download a file that contains the raw output of the status for each deployment step.

Viewing Information for the Installed Bundle

The Installed Bundle Information area in the Deployment pane provides a summary of the current bundle, as shown in the following image.

Installed Bundle Information	
Project Name	Customer
Created By	IBI Deployment Bundler
Created Date	1/16/20 12:14 PM
Release Number	1.0.0.Alpha.3
Version	Customer_1_0_0_Alpha_3_200116121447
Installed Date	2020-01-16 17:15:29.288
Release Notes	

Viewing Subjects

The Subjects area in the Deployment pane lists all of the Subjects that are defined within this deployment, as shown in the following image.

Subjec	ts				•
	Workflow	Name	Cleansed	Mastered	Reset
=-	20/20	Customer	false	false	U
=-	20/20	Item	false	false	U
=-	20/20	SalesOrder	false	false	U
=-	20/20	SalesOrg	false	false	U
=-	20/20	SourceCodeMap	false	false	U
=-	20/20	SourceCodeMetadata	false	false	U
=-	20/20	SourceCodeSet	false	false	U
=•	20/20	SourceCodeStandard	false	false	U

Specific operations can be performed on a selected subject, as shown in the following image.



These operations range from simply reviewing the structure of the subject through its schema or a physical example (Omni Input Document), to the ability to run a single instance or multiple instances through the system for testing purposes utilizing auto generated sample data. This can be used for simple tests of the environment or performance testing.

To view this context menu, click the menu icon that corresponds to a subject in the first column of the Subjects table.

The following table lists and describes the available operations that can be performed for a selected subject.

Operation	Description
View Example	Views an example for the selected subject. For more information, see <i>Example Viewer</i> on page 29.
View IDS	Views the Interface Document Specification (IDS) for the selected subject. For more information, see <i>IDS Viewer</i> on page 30.
View XSD	Views the XML Schema Document (XSD) for the selected subject. For more information, see XSD Viewer on page 31.
Download Documentation	Downloads the documentation for the selected subject. For more information, see <i>Downloading Documentation</i> on page 31.
Reprocess Subject	Reprocesses the selected subject. When complete, a message displays in a green banner at the top of the window indicating that the reprocessing of the item was successful.
Process Test Subjects	Displays the processing menu for the selected subject. For more information, see <i>Process Test Subjects</i> on page 32.

Example Viewer

Selecting the *View Example* operation for a subject opens the Example Viewer, which displays an example of the selected subject, as shown in the following image.

C	ustomer.xml - example
1	xml version="1.0" encoding="UTF-8"?
2	
3	<omniinterface></omniinterface>
4	<customer></customer>
5	<sourcename>test_system</sourcename>
6	<sourceinstanceid>1579194922601_4</sourceinstanceid>
7	<sourceinstanceidname>source_instance_id_name</sourceinstanceidname>
8	<active_status>active_status</active_status>
9	<legal_name>legal_name</legal_name>
10	<dba_name>dba_name</dba_name>
11	<first_name>first_name</first_name>
12	<middle_name>middle_name</middle_name>
13	<last_name>last_name</last_name>
14	<display_name>display_name</display_name>
15	<company_name>company_name</company_name>
16	<tax_id>tax_id</tax_id>
17	<tax_exempt_num>tax_exempt_num</tax_exempt_num>
18	<pre><soc_sec_num>soc_sec_num</soc_sec_num></pre>
19	<pre><date_of_birth format="yyyy-MM-dd">2020-01-16</date_of_birth></pre>
20	<prim_sales_org></prim_sales_org>
21	<salesorg></salesorg>
22	<sourcename>test_system</sourcename>
23	<sourceinstanceid>prim_sales_org_id</sourceinstanceid>
24	
25	
26	<lead_source_txt>lead_source_txt</lead_source_txt>
27	<priority_group codeset="priority_groups" sourcename="test_system">priority_group_code</priority_group>
28	<primary_geo_area codeset="primary_geo_areas" sourcename="test_system">primary_geo_area_code</primary_geo_area>
29	<pre><credit_rating codeset="credit_ratings" sourcename="test_system">credit_rating_code</credit_rating></pre>
30	<emailomnicollection></emailomnicollection>

IDS Viewer

Selecting the *View IDS* operation for a subject opens the IDS Viewer, which displays the corresponding Interface Document Specification (IDS), as shown in the following image.

C	ustomer.xml - ids
1	
2	 <idsdocument class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsDateType" date"="" domain="Customer" elementorder="OmniStatus,OmniStatusReason,5</th></tr><tr><th>3</th><th><documentation>The basic information about a customer such as name, identifier, and priority.</documents</th></tr><tr><th>4</th><th><longDocumentation></longDocumentation></th></tr><tr><th>5</th><th><customType name=" name="Customer" type="instance"></idsdocument>
6	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsCodeType" name="code"></customtype>
7	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsStringType" name="string"></customtype>
8	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsMultipleCodeType" name="codelist"></customtype>
9	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsDocumentType" name="document"></customtype>
10	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsLinkType" name="link"></customtype>
11	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsLinkType" name="omnilink"></customtype>
12	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsIntegerType" name="integer"></customtype>
13	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsFloatType" name="float"></customtype>
14	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsLongType" name="long"></customtype>
15	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.model.codes.SourceCode" name="sourcecode"></customtype>
16	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsCodeType" name="reference"></customtype>
17	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsNumberType" name="number"></customtype>
18	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsDateTimeType" name="datetime"></customtype>
19	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsClobType" name="clob"></customtype>
20	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsDateType" name="omnidate"></customtype>
21	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsCodeType" name="omnicode"></customtype>
22	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsLinkType" name="identifier"></customtype>
23	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsMasterCodeType" name="masteromnicode"></customtype>
24	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsDateTimeType" name="omnidatetime"></customtype>
25	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsDoubleType" name="double"></customtype>
26	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsListType" name="list"></customtype>
27	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsBooleanType" name="boolean"></customtype>
28	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsStringType" name="inherited"></customtype>
29	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsTimeType" name="time"></customtype>
30	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsMasterLinkType" name="masteromnilink"></customtype>
31	<customtype class="com.ibi.omni.ids.types.IdsVarLinkType" name="varlink"></customtype>
32	<pre><element cleanse="true" hidden="true" match="true" merge="true" name="OmniStatus" type="string"></element></pre>
33	<pre><documentation>Use this element to set the status of this record. This field will default to 'ACTIVE'</documentation></pre>
34	

XSD Viewer

Selecting the *View XSD* operation for a subject opens the XSD Viewer, which displays the corresponding XML Schema Document (XSD), as shown in the following image.

Cu	stomer.xsd - xsd
1	xml version="1.0" encoding="UTF-8"?
2	
3	<xs:schema customerphone"="" type="tns:idsCustomerPhone" xmlns:tns="http://www.ibi.com/2013</td></tr><tr><td>4</td><td><xs:element name=" xmlns:xs="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema"></xs:schema>
5	<pre><xs:annotation></xs:annotation></pre>
6	<xs:documentation>The phone numbers related to a customer.</xs:documentation>
7	
8	
9	<xs:element name="Customer" type="tns:idsCustomer"></xs:element>
10	<xs:annotation></xs:annotation>
11	<xs:documentation>The basic information about a customer such as name, identifier,</xs:documentation>
12	
13	
14	<xs:element name="CustomerEmail" type="tns:idsCustomerEmail"></xs:element>
15	<xs:annotation></xs:annotation>
16	<rs:documentation>The emails related to a customer.</rs:documentation>
17	
18	
19	<xs:element name="CustomerAccountTeam" type="tns:idsCustomerAccountTeam"></xs:element>
20	<xs:annotation></xs:annotation>
21	<xs:documentation>The account teams related to a customer.</xs:documentation>
22	
23	
24	<xs:element name="CustomerAccount" type="tns:idsCustomerAccount"></xs:element>
25	<xs:annotation></xs:annotation>
26	<pre><xs:documentation>The accounts related to a customer.</xs:documentation></pre>
27	
28	
29	<xs:element name="CustomerContact" type="tns:idsCustomerContact"></xs:element>
30	<xs:annotation></xs:annotation>
31	<pre><xs:documentation>The contacts related to a customer.</xs:documentation> </pre>
32	
33	

Downloading Documentation

Selecting the *Download Documentation* operation for a subject prompts you to open or save the document, as shown in the following image.

Do you want to save Customer.xls (45.5 KB) from tcmappsb.ibi.com? Save 🔻 Cancel 🗙

Process Test Subjects

Selecting the *Process Test Subjects* operation for a subject opens the Process dialog box for the selected subject (for example, Customer), as shown in the following image.

Process Custo	omer					
Enter the number of test subjects that you would like to generate, then press the play button to process.						
1000	×					
< Back to Menu						

Specify the number of test subjects to generate, and then click the green Play icon.

Managing Workflow Items During Subject Processing

When processing a subject in the *Deployment* section, you can manage specific steps in the subject workflow (for example, enabling or disabling an operation). Click the check box in the Workflow column to display the work order items for a particular subject, as shown in the following image.

≡ @mniConsole	Deployment			
	L Deploy Bundle → U Reset Environment →	Workflow Items	- Customer	✓ Save X Cancel
Services	Installed Bundle Information	Enabled?	Operation	~
🖌 Configuration 👻	Project Name	Enabled Disabled	SOURCE_TO_MODEL	
Deployment	Created By	Enchlod Dischlod	CLEANSE	
Processing	Created Date	Enabled Disabled		
🖵 System 👻	Release Number	Enabled Disabled	MASTER_REFERENCE	
Testing	Version	Enabled Disabled	MASTER_REFERENCE_RELOAD	
) Concolor	Installed Date	Enabled Disabled	МАТСН	
Operations	Release Notes	Enabled Disabled	MATCH_SET_DELETE	
	Subjects	Enabled Disabled	MATCH_SET_INACTIVE	
	Workflow	Enabled Disabled	FILL_RELOAD_QUEUE	
		Enabled Disabled	MERGE	
		Enabled Disabled	PROMOTE_MASTER	
		Enabled Disabled	REMEDIATE	
		Enabled Disabled	AUTO_CLOSE	
		Enabled Disabled	SUBJECT_GROUP_PROCESS	
		Enabled Disabled	CDC_RECORD	
		Enabled Disabled	DISPATCH_SUBJECT_GROUP_PROCESSES	
		Enabled Disabled	HISTORY_INSTANCE	

Monitoring Data Processing

The *Processing* section enables you to monitor the data processing that is occurring in the system. You can observe the overall status and any relevant messages in a unified view. This view can be sorted by columns to provide easy navigation. You can also enable filters to customize the view.

The Processing pane is organized into the following views, which you can select from the left pane:

Work Orders

Measures

Ramp Control

The Work Orders pane allows you to view and manage Work Orders in the Omni-Gen system. You can expand the information on any given entry by clicking the plus (+) icon and view further details, as shown in the following image, as shown in the following image.

≡ @mniConsole	i Wo	rk Orders								0 🛔
	Dispatcher	💿 Debug 💽								1 - 3 of 3 - 25
🗱 Services	Work Orde	rs								T0
差 Configuration 👻		Туре	Subject	Batch Id	Source	Status	Result	Reason	Start Date-	End Date
Deployment	- = *	BULK	Customer	abc4a481-d6a6-4674-b0f3-a5a607cfeaa7	TestSource	COMPLETE	PASS		2020-01-27 17:59:19.501	2020-01-27 17:59:41.505
Work Orders		START	Customer	abc4a481-d6a6-4674-b0f3-a5a607cfeaa7		COMPLETE	PASS		2020-01-27 17:59:19.485	2020-01-27 17:59:19.594
Measures		RAMP_TO_MODEL	Customer	abc4a481-d6a6-4674-b0f3-a5a607cfeaa7		COMPLETE	PASS		2020-01-27 17:59:19.662	2020-01-27 17:59:41.474
Ramp Control		STOP	Customer	abc4a481-d6a6-4674-b0f3-a5a607cfeaa7		COMPLETE	PASS		2020-01-27 17:59:41.489	2020-01-27 17:59:41.521
 Testing 	+ = •	BULK	SourceCodeSet	349b8d4e-4500-46a6-b53d-db52c820f6d5		COMPLETE	PASS		2020-01-27 17:58:46.378	2020-01-27 17:58:47.222
>_ Consoles	+ = •	BULK	Customer	4726d12b-68f3-4920-abdf-a308bd205ae0	TestSource	COMPLETE	PASS		2020-01-27 17:58:40.993	2020-01-27 17:58:46.347
Operations										

The Measures view enables you to see details on what actions have occurred during the process, the number of processed records, and its duration. Some of the columns for the Measures view are shown in the following image.

Measures										T
	Component	Service	Operation	Subject	Status	Start Time	End Time	Elapsed	Processed	Transaction T
	OMNI_SERVER	CodeProcessing	checkForMissingCodeXRefs		Complete	2020-01-27 17:59:41.442	2020-01-27 17:59:41.458	0.016	26	1d401442-8487-42aa- bb48-c66c2650432c
	OMNI_SERVER	CodeProcessing	checkForMissingCodes		Complete	2020-01-27 17:59:41.427	2020-01-27 17:59:41.427	0	34	1d401442-8487-42aa- bb48-c66c2650432c
+ = •	OMNI_SERVER	RampProcessing	rampToInstance	Customer	Complete	2020-01-27 17:59:19.686	2020-01-27 17:59:41.411	21.725	10000	1d401442-8487-42aa- bb48-c66c2650432c

The Ramp Control view enables you to see a list of jobs that have been loaded to the ramp, and details about each job. A snippet of the Ramp Control view is shown in the following image.

Ramp Cont	rol								T0
	Batch Id	Subject	Source	Batch Type	Batch Option	Load Type	Active	State	Processing End
= ~	abc4a481-d6a6-4674-b0f3-a5a607cfeaa7	Customer	TestSource	UPSERT		TESTING	Y	COMPLETE	2020-01-27 17:59:18.766

Note: You can also view the measures and list of jobs that have been loaded to the ramp by selecting the drop-down menu next to a specific entry, as shown in the following image.

Work Orders						
	Туре	Subject				
+ = •	BULK	Customer				
+ = -	BULK	SourceCodeSet				
+ = •	BULK	Customer				
Measures						
A Ramp Control						

Viewing Logs

The *System* section enables you to view all of the logs, messages, and codes for your Omni-Gen environment. In the left pane of the Omni Console, expand System, and select Logs, Messages, or Codes from the menu, as shown in the following image.

≡ <i>‰</i> mniCo	nsole	System Logs	2 ?	±
		bundler.log 🗸 de Clear Editor 🖉 Reload File		
🗱 Services		System Log File : bundler.log		6
🌽 Configuration	•	1 2020-01-10 10:58:31,995 INFO com.ibi.omni.deployment.bundle.Bundler:48 - Starting Bundler v3.ee bundle-3.13.2596.jar started by jm00143 in C:\omnigen\deploymentbundle)	nt-	^
Deployment		2 2020-01-10 10:58:32,026 DEBUG com.ibi.omni.deployment.bundle.Bundler:51 - Running with Spring 3 2020-01-10 10:58:32,026 INFO com.ibi.omni.deployment.bundle.Bundler:574 - The following profi		
Processing •		4 2020-01-10 10:58:32,823 INFO org.springframework.boot.context.embedded.AnnotationConfigEmbedd org.springframework.boot.context.embedded.AnnotationConfigEmbeddedWebApplicationContext@6a38e5r	chy	
🖵 System 👻		5 2020-01-10 10:58:46,549 INFO org.springframework.boot.context.embedded.tomcat.TomcatEmbeddedS1 6 2020-01-10 10:58:48,245 INFO org.springframework.boot.web.servlet.ServletRegistrationBean:190	(http)	
Logs		7 2020-01-10 10:58:48,253 INFO org.springframework.boot.web.servlet.FilterRegistrationBean:251 8 2020-01-10 10:58:48,253 INFO org.springframework.boot.web.servlet.FilterRegistrationBean:251		
s Messages		9 2020-01-10 10:58:48,253 INFO org.springframework.boot.web.servlet.FilterRegistrationBean:251 10 2020-01-10 10:58:48,253 INFO org.springframework.boot.web.servlet.FilterRegistrationBean:251 2020-01-01 00:00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00		
♦ Codes		11 2020-01-10 10:55:45,253 INFO org.springframework.boot.web.Servlet.FilterRegistrationbean:251 12 2020-01-10 10:55:46,253 INFO org.springframework.boot.web.servlet.FilterRegistrationBean:251 13 2020-01-10 10:55:46,253 INFO org.springframework.boot.web.servlet.FilterRegistrationBean:251		
Testing 1	-	<pre>14 2020-01-10 10:58:51,853 INFO org.springframework.boot.actuate.endpoint.mvc.EndpointHandlerMp [application/ynd.spring-boot.actuator.vl+ison application/ison]}</pre>	lue	
>_ Consoles		<pre>(java.lang.String) 15 2020-01-10 10:58:51,853 INFO org.springframework.boot.actuate.endpoint.mvc.EndpointHandlerMap=</pre>		
Operations		[application/vnd.spring-boot.actuator.v1+json application/json]}" onto public java.lang.Objn 16 2020-01-10 10:58:51,853 INFO org.springframework.boot.actuate.endpoint.mvc.EndpointHandlerMap	voke ()	
		[application/vnd.spring-boot.actuator.v1+json application/json]}" onto public java.lang.Objn	voke ()	

Testing Your Deployment Bundle

The *Testing* section enables you to test your deployment bundle directly in the Omni Console and view the results that are returned.

In the left pane of the Omni Console, click Testing, as shown in the following image.

≡	mniConsole	7	Test	ting		
		🏦 L	oad File	Select Sample		Process
08	Services	OIE) to Proc	ess		
۶	Configuration 💌	1	Paste	or load sample	data above	
Ø	Deployment					
⊞	Processing <					
Q	System 💌					
•	Testing					
>_	Consoles					
₽	Operations					

You can paste sample data directly into the available field or select a specific file. Click *Process* when you are ready to proceed.

Consoles

The *Consoles* section enables you to have direct access to other relevant consoles for related services (for example, Data Processing and Omni Server). This ensures a unified single access point for all your needs to address monitoring and management aspects of the Omni-Gen environment.

In the left pane of the Omni Console, click Consoles, as shown in the following image.

= 🧑	mniConsole	>_ Consoles	
🎎 Se	ervices	Console UI Links	9
🄑 Co	onfiguration 👻	Service Name	UI Status
<table-cell> De</table-cell>	eployment	Data Processing	
📰 Pr	rocessing 💌	Controller Swagger UI	https://TCMAPPSB.ibi.com:9500/swagger-ui.html
🖵 Sv	vstem 👻	Server Swagger UI	Console currently unavailable
, •те	esting	Omni Services	· · · ·
, 10		Deployment Bundler UI	https://TCMAPPSB.ibi.com:9502/
M Op M Op	perations	Repository Swagger UI	http://TCMAPPSB.ibi.com:9516/com.iwaysoftware.omni.designer.repositoryservice/swagger- ui.html

You can select one of the following consoles from the table that is displayed:

- Controller Swagger UI
- Server Swagger UI
- Deployment Bundler UI
- Repository Swagger UI

Operations

The Operations section provides a detailed view into system resource utilization, transaction processing, execution statistics, and other relevant data to optimize the Omni-Gen system and isolate any performance bottlenecks. This area is separated into relevant subsections, based on the product area that is most resource intensive.

≡ @mniConsole	Operations								0	0	1
	Service: Controller	🖉 Ref	resh								
😂 Services	System Information	Oatabase Activity	I≣ Dependency Manifests	System Diagnostics	C Threads all Network	Certificate					
🖌 Configuration 👻	VHealth - Controller			💻 Java Virtua	I Machine (JVM) - Controller		Garbage Collection	n - Controller			0
Deployment	Disk Space	free	49.69 GB	Uptime	106.484 minu	utes	ps_scavenge	count	155		
Processing		threshold	10 MB	System Load	-1		_	time	5069 ms		
System -		total	99.45 GB	Available Proce	essors 2		ps_marksweep	count	3		
Testing 0	Database			Classes	current	. 15960		time	540 ms		
) Consider	System	vendor	PostgreSQL		total	15960	E Data Source - Con	troller			0
>_ Consoles		status	UP		unloaded	0	Primary (Model)	active connecti	ons 0		
Operations	Model	vendor	PostgreSQL	Threads	current	38		usage	0		
		status	UP		daemon	25					
	Consumption	vendor	PostgreSQL		peak	45					
		status	UP		total started	6915					
				B Memory - C	ontroller						
				Memory	(264.4 MB / 406.6 N	AB) 65%					
				Heap Memory	(112.23 MB / 254.39 MB)	44%					
				Initial Heap (-X	ims) 250 MB						
				Maximum Heap	p (-Xmx) 889.16 MB						
				Non-Heap Merr	nory (152.2 MB / 155.8 N	MB) 97%					
				Initial Non-Hea	p 2.38 MB						
				Maximum Non-	-Heap 0 B						

The Operations section is meant to be a supplement to other performance monitoring tools, such as Java monitoring, database monitoring, tuning facilities, and other related third-party tools. It is not meant to be a replacement, but rather a supplemental tool to help identify and isolate potential problems in the Omni-Gen system.

The *Database Activity* tab displays the ten slowest, and ten most recent queries that are still running (if any). This can be enabled on a per data source basis. The Omni-Gen Server must be running to retrieve this information.

The Database Activity pane is shown in the following image.

Operation	s							0	-
Service: Controller	🕄 Re	fresh							
System Information	Database Activity	I Dependency Manifests	System Diagnostics	ඪ Threads	II Network	Certificate			
😑 Slowest Databas	e Queries - OmniServe	r							0
Datasource					Elapsed		Query		
Sective Database	Queries - OmniServer								0
Datasource					Elapsed		Query		

The *Dependency Manifests* tab provides a detailed list of all Java dependencies that are packaged with the Omni-Gen environment. This information is extracted from the Manifest (.mf) file of all JARs in the OmniServer system library.

Operations						
Service: Controller	🖯 Ref	íresh				
System Information	Database Activity	E Dependency Manifests	System Diagnostics	ඪ Threads	III Network	Certificate
Jar Name		Implementation Title	Implem	entation Versio	on Created	Ву
OmniCommandLine-3.14	1.2635.jar	OmniCommandLine	3.14.26	35	1.8.0_232	2-b09 ()
OmniController-3.14.263	5.jar	OmniController	3.14.26	35	1.8.0_232	2-b09 ()
OmniServer-3.14.2635.ja	ar	OmniServer	3.14.26	35	1.8.0_232	2-b09 ()
XmlSchema-1.4.7.jar					Apache N Plugin	laven Bundle
animal-sniffer-annotation	is-1.18.jar				Apache N	laven 3.6.1
ant-1.10.7.jar					11.0.1+13 Corporati	3 (Oracle on)
ant-launcher-1.10.7.jar					11.0.1+13 Corporati	3 (Oracle on)
aopalliance-1.0.jar					1.4.2_01- Microsyst	b06 (Sun tems Inc.)
apache-mime4j-core-0.7	.2.jar	Apache Mime4j	0.7.2		Apache N Plugin	/laven Bundle
axiom-api-1.2.13.jar		Axiom API	1.2.13		Apache N Plugin	laven Bundle
axiom-impl-1.2.13.jar		Axiom Impl	1.2.13		Apache N Plugin	laven Bundle

The Dependency Manifests pane is shown in the following image.

The System Diagnostics tab provides the capability to generate and download a diagnostic zip file to share with the Customer Support Services to isolate and troubleshoot any issues, as required. All download options shown in the image below include certificate, network, and dependency information, by default.

Operations						
Service: Controller	🞜 Ref	resh				
System Information	Database Activity	I≡ Dependency Manifests	System Diagnostics	ෘදු Threads	II Network	Certificate
Diagnostic Generate Diagnostic	ZIP				0	
	۵	Complete (Log and Configura	tion Files)			
		Only Log files				
	¥	Only Configuration files				

The *Threads* tab provides a detailed list of threads related to the target JVM for the selected Omni-Gen service. The thread dump information is taken when the Operations console is initially loaded, the selected service is changed, or the status is refreshed.

If the ld field in the first column is displayed as a link, clicking it will display a detailed Stack Trace for that thread. You can click the *Refresh* button if no data has been loaded. The Threads pane is shown in the following image.

@	Operations							
Servic	e: Controller	£	Refresh					
🖵 Sys	tem Information	Database Activ	vity 📰	Dependency Manifests	System Diagnostics	🕸 Threads	III Network	Certificate
ld	Thread Name			Lock Name				Blocke Time
95628	HandshakeCom	npletedNotify-Threa	ıd					
95619	Keep-Alive-Tim	er						
1682	https-jsse-nio-9	500-exec-15		java.util.concurrent	locks.AbstractQueuedSy	nchronizer\$Co	nditionObject@	4becda9e
1681	https-jsse-nio-9	500-exec-14		java.util.concurrent	locks.AbstractQueuedSy	nchronizer\$Co	nditionObject@	4becda9e
1672	https-jsse-nio-9	500-exec-12		java.util.concurrent	locks.AbstractQueuedSy	nchronizer\$Co	nditionObject@	4becda9e
786	Thread-10							
785	Thread-9							
84	DestroyJavaVM	I						
83	WORK_ORDER	R_SCHEDULER		java.util.concurrent	.locks.AbstractQueuedSy	nchronizer\$Co	nditionObject@	67c5e169
82	taskExecutor-1			java.util.concurrent	.locks.AbstractQueuedSy	nchronizer\$Co	nditionObject@	20b8c578
81	WORK_ORDER	R_SCHEDULER		java.util.concurrent	locks.AbstractQueuedSy	nchronizer\$Co	nditionObject@	67c5e169

The *Network* tab provides an overview of the network interfaces (real or virtual) for the host. The information is gathered using a native system command ifconfig (Linux) or ipconfig (Windows). If you download a zip file from the system diagnostics screen, this information is included, by default, as a text file. The Network pane is shown in the following image.

Operations	;					
Service: Controller	🕄 Re	fresh				
System Information	Database Activity	i≡ Dependency Manifests	System Diagnostics	෯ Threads	 Network	Certificate
III Network Interface	Information					
Host Name Primary Dns Suf Node Type IP Routing Enab WINS Proxy Enab DNS Suffix Sear	fix	: TCMAPPSB : ibi.com : Hybrid : No : No : ibi.com				
Ethernet adapter E Connection-spec	thernet:	: : Microsoft Hyper-V Netw	work Adapter			
Physical Addres DHCP Enabled Autoconfigurati	s	: 00-1D-D8-B7-1D-30 : No : Yes				
IPv6 Address Link-local IPv6 IPv4 Address Subnet Mask	IPv6 Address					
DHCPv6 IAID DHCPv6 Client D DNS Servers	UID	172.30.176.33 50337117 00-01-00-01-23-5A-A1-A 172.30.176.20	\2-00-1D-D8-B7-1D-30			
NetBIOS over To	pip	172.30.176.22 172.30.176.22 172.30.176.23 : Enabled				

The *Certificate* tab provides detailed information about the TLS/SSL certificate used to secure HTTPS connections across the Omni-Gen system. If you download a zip file from the system diagnostics screen, this information is included, by default, as a text file.

The Certificate pane is shown in the following image.

Operations									
Service: Controller & Refresh									
System Information	Database Activity	E Dependency Manifests	System Diagnostics	ඪ Threads	III Network	Certificate			
Certificate Informa Warning: The JKS keystore u a/omnigenstore.pl2 e7 Valid from: Fri Ja Certificate finger MD5: E8: SHA1: E4: SHA256: 5 Signature algorith Subject Public Key Version: 3	tion ses a proprietary f -destkeystore C:\c n 10 09:35:08 EST 2 prints: BD:51:68:A9:7E:70:5 3C:DF:54:27:F6:92:8 9:86:A4:88:26:8C:14 m name: SHA256withR Algorithm: 2048-bi	Format. It is recommended mnigen/OmniServer//Omr 1020 until: Mon Jan 07 05 15:64:BA:13:33:68:8B:E9:0 16:83:8B:E1:9D:85:B0:99:0 1:03:AC:AD:A7:0C:6E:EC:E5 1SA t RSA key	1 to migrate to PKCS1 hiGenData/omnigenstor 0:35:08 EST 2030 :6 E8:4C:FE:72:23 h:EB:CE:1C:12:F1:1D:5	2 which is a e.p12 -dests C:F5:5C:DD:B	n industry s toretype pkc: JF:DF:66:1B:D	tandard format s12". 7:84:9F			
Extensions:									
<pre>#1: ObjectId: 2.5. SubjectAlternative URIName: https:/ URIName: https:/ URIName: https:/ URIName: https:/]</pre>	29.17 Criticality=f Name [/localhost /TCMAPPSB /TCMAPPSB.ibi.com /*.ibi.com	alse							
#2: ObjectId: 2.5. SubjectKeyIdentifi KeyIdentifier [0000: 40 51 39 07 0010: CB C1 07 F0]]	29.14 Criticality=f er [91 DE 6A F6 09 A3	alse : A6 C0 BA 8E D7 39 @Q9. 	j9						

Feedback

Customer success is our top priority. Connect with us today!

Information Builders Technical Content Management team is comprised of many talented individuals who work together to design and deliver quality technical documentation products. Your feedback supports our ongoing efforts!

You can also preview new innovations to get an early look at new content products and services. Your participation helps us create great experiences for every customer.

To send us feedback or make a connection, contact Sarah Buccellato, Technical Editor, Technical Content Management at Sarah_Buccellato@ibi.com.

To request permission to repurpose copyrighted material, please contact Frances Gambino, Vice President, Technical Content Management at *Frances_Gambino@ibi.com*.

Inf%rmation Builders

iWay

[/] Omni Console User's Guide

Version 3.14

DN3502357.0220

Information Builders, Inc. Two Penn Plaza New York, NY 10121-2898